

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Ninety-eighth Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with subsection VI of section 27 of chapter 10 of the Revised Statutes of 1954.

KENNEBEC JOURNAL

AUGUSTA, MAINE

1957

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Ninety-eighth Legislature

1957

shall be made upon the adverse party or his attorney as prescribed by law for service of motion in an action in the same Court. If the adverse party shall be a nonresident, then the notice of the application shall be served in like manner as other process of the Court is served upon nonresidents.

Sec. 21-H. Vacation; grounds; rehearing. In any of the following cases the Superior Court or Supreme Judicial Court, sitting in equity in and for the county wherein the award was made, may make an order vacating the award upon the application of any party to the arbitration:

- I. Where the award was procured by corruption, fraud or undue means;
- II. Where there was obvious partiality or corruption in the arbitrators, or any of them;
- III. Where the arbitrators were guilty of abuse of discretion by which the rights of any party have been prejudiced;
- IV. Where the arbitrators exceeded their powers, or so imperfectly executed them that a mutual, final and definite award upon the subject matter submitted was not made.

Where an award is vacated and the time within which the agreement required the award to be made has not expired, the Court may, in its discretion, direct a rehearing by the arbitrators.

Sec. 21-I. Modification or correction; grounds; order. The Superior Court or Supreme Judicial Court, sitting in equity in and for the county wherein the award was made, may make an order modifying or correcting the award upon the application of any party to the arbitration where there was an evident material miscalculation of figures or an evident material mistake in the description of any person, thing or property referred to in the award.

Sec. 21-J. Application limited. The provisions of sections 21-A to 21-I, inclusive, shall not apply to any provision or agreement relative to arbitration contained in a collective bargaining contract entered into prior to the effective date of said sections, or to any agreement to submit to arbitration an existing controversy entered into prior to the effective date of said sections.'

Effective August 28, 1957

Chapter 410

AN ACT Creating Office of Hearing Examiner under Liquor Law.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 61, § 56, sub-§ I, repealed and replaced. Subsection I of section 56 of chapter 61 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by section 13 of chapter 355 of the public laws of 1955, is hereby repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

1. There is hereby created the Office of Hearing Examiner for the State Liquor Commission, such Hearing Examiner to be appointed by the Gov-

ernor, by and with the advice of the Council, for a term of 4 years. The Hearing Examiner shall be an attorney-at-law duly admitted to practice before the courts of Maine. He may be removed from office by the Governor for misfeasance, malfeasance and nonfeasance in office. He shall receive an annual compensation to be set by the Governor and Council and shall be entitled to actual and necessary expenses in the performance of his duties. The Hearing Examiner shall conduct hearings on all matters concerning violations of licenses of any law relating to alcoholic beverages or infractions of any rule or regulation issued by the State Liquor Commission after notice of such violation or infraction has been reported to him on a signed complaint by a duly designated enforcement officer of said Commission. The Hearing Examiner shall thereupon notify the licensee by serving on him a copy of the complaint and a notice stating the time and place of hearing and that he may appear in person or by counsel at the hearing. Service of such complaint and notice shall be sufficient if sent by registered mail to the address given by the licensee at the time of his application for a license, 7 days at least before the date of hearing. The Hearing Examiner shall thereupon conduct a hearing limited to the facts and law, and rules and regulations of the State Liquor Commission, as specified in said complaint.

The Hearing Examiner is authorized to subpoena and examine witnesses and to administer oaths. In the conducting of hearings, no hearsay testimony shall be admissible and the licensees named in the complaint shall have the right to have all witnesses testify in person at the hearing. The Hearing Examiner shall state in writing his findings and decision in each case, based upon the facts and the law, and the rules and regulations of the State Liquor Commission. Said findings shall specify the facts found and the law, rules or regulations found to be violated.

The Hearing Examiner shall conduct hearings in such designated place or places as may be most convenient and economical for all parties concerned in said hearing.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 61, § 56, sub-§ II, amended. Subsection II of section 56 of chapter 61 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

~~II.~~ Licenses may be revoked or suspended ~~at the discretion of the commission~~ by the Hearing Examiner for the following causes:

- A. Violation of any law relating to alcoholic beverages or substantial infraction of any rule or regulation issued by the Commission;
- B. Knowingly making a false material statement of fact in the application for the license;
- C. Knowingly making inaccurate and misleading statements as to brands or labels; giving of rebates to a customer for the purpose of influencing a sale;
- D. Making sales to persons under age as prohibited by law, except that licensees selling to minors furnishing fraudulent proof of age ~~as provided by subsection 1~~ may be held not administratively liable ~~at the discretion of the commission~~ by the Hearing Examiner;
- E. Making sales after the permitted hours of sale;
- F. Making sales on Sunday;

G. The making of sales by hotels, clubs and restaurants for off the premises consumption;

H. Making sales of spirituous or vinous liquor on the day of the holding of a general election or state-wide primary;

I. Conviction of violation of any law of the United States relating to the manufacture, possession, transportation or sale of intoxicating liquor;

J. Conviction of violation of any law of the United States relating to carrying on the business of a wholesale or retail dealer without a federal tax stamp;

K. Conviction of the violation of the provisions of section 32 of the United States Liquor Taxing Act of 1934 relating to having in possession distilled spirits in unstamped containers;

L. Transferring, assigning or hypothecating a license; and

M. Failure to have and maintain throughout the entire license period all of the requirements of definitions, laws, rules and regulations, necessary to qualify for a license. For this particular offense the ~~commission~~ **Hearing Examiner** shall be authorized to suspend licenses for an indefinite period of time until ~~he~~ he is satisfied that the licensee has conformed to all qualifications required for licensing.'

Sec. 3. R. S., c. 61, § 56, sub-§ III, amended. Subsection III of section 56 of chapter 61 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'III. Whenever violations by licensees occur in one year's license period and remain undiscovered or carry over into the next license year pending investigation or final disposition either in criminal courts or before the ~~commission~~ **Hearing Examiner**, any license issued subsequent to violation for a new license year may be suspended or revoked by the ~~commission~~ **Hearing Examiner.**'

Sec. 4. R. S., c. 61, § 56, sub-§ IV, amended. Subsection IV of section 56 of chapter 61 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'IV. Whenever it appears to the ~~commission~~ **Hearing Examiner** that a violation by a licensee is technical only, wholly unintentional and not careless, or that any penalty at all would be too harsh and unreasonable in the light of the offense committed, ~~he~~ he may send the offending licensee a warning ~~in lieu of ordering him to appear for hearing or upon hearing~~ may place the case on file or suspend the operation of a suspension.'

Sec. 5. R. S., c. 61, § 56, amended. The next to the last paragraph of section 56 of chapter 61 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'In cases of ownership, direct or indirect, in more than one license, suspensions shall apply only to the premise where the violation occurs. The ~~commission~~ **Hearing Examiner** may order that a revocation shall apply to any premises in which the licensee is, directly or indirectly, interested.'

Sec. 6. R. S., c. 61, § 56-A, additional. Chapter 61 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to be numbered 56-A, to read as follows:

'Sec. 56-A. Appeal. A full and complete record shall be kept of all proceedings had before the Hearing Examiner on the revoking and suspending of any license issued by the Commission.

If any person is aggrieved by the decision of the Hearing Examiner in revoking or suspending any license issued by the Commission, he may within 10 days thereafter appeal to the Commission by presenting to it a petition therefor. The Commission shall forthwith fix a time and place for immediate hearing; and after hearing, the Commission may affirm, modify or reverse the decision of the Hearing Examiner. Pending judgment of the Commission, the decision of the Hearing Examiner in revoking or suspending any license shall remain in full force and effect.'

Effective August 28, 1957

Chapter 411

AN ACT Relating to Registration Fees for Motor Buses Used for Transportation of Passengers for Hire.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 22, § 16, sub-§ I, ¶ C, sub-¶ 2, amended. Subparagraph 2 of paragraph C of subsection I of section 16 of chapter 22 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'2. Operating, regularly or seasonally, in interstate commerce, over regular routes between any point or points in this State and any point or points in any other state or between any point or points in any adjacent foreign country and any point or points in this State more than 15 miles from the place of entry into this State, shall pay double the registration fees as follows: ~~motor vehicles of not over 7 persons seating capacity shall pay the fees as provided in the foregoing part of this section paragraph A; motor vehicles of over 7 persons seating capacity shall pay in addition to the above fees an additional sum of \$2.50 for each seat in addition to 7. Provided also that motor~~ Motor vehicles owned by residents of any state, province or foreign country, where residents of this State registering motor vehicles are required to pay double the fees charged against resident owners, shall pay double the fees indicated ~~above~~ provided in paragraph A, whether for private use or for livery or hire.'

Sec. 2. P. L., 1957, c. 330, § 2, repealed; limitation. Section 2 of chapter 330 of the public laws of 1957, heretofore passed by this Legislature, amending subparagraph 2 of paragraph C of subsection I of section 16 of chapter 22 of the Revised Statutes, is hereby repealed and shall not be printed as part of the Session Laws of 1957.

Sec. 3. P. L., 1957, c. 330, § 5, repealed; limitation. Section 5 of chapter 330 of the public laws of 1957, heretofore passed by this Legislature, amending the 2nd paragraph of section 19 of chapter 22 of the Revised Statutes, is hereby repealed and shall not be printed as part of the Session Laws of 1957.